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Independent Auditors’ Report



SULLIVAN, ROGERS & COMPANY, LLC
Corporate Place I, Suite 204 « 99 South Bedford Street
Butlington, Massachusetts 01803

P.781-229-5600 F -781-229-5610 www.sullivan-rogers.com

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditors” Report

To the Honorable Board of Selectmen
Town of Nahant, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Nahant, Massachusetts,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of Nahant,
Massachusetts’ management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our

audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Nahant, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2007, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 29, 2007 on our
consideration of the Town of Nahant, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our

audit.



The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, located on pages 4 through
13 and 51 through 54, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

August 29, 2007
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

As management of the Town of Nahant, Massachusetts (Town), we offer readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the Town’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $19,584,272 (net
assets). Of this amount, $1,537,290 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

» The Town'’s total net assets increased by $1,043,065.

»  As of the close of the fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $155,638, an increase of $2,637,577 in comparison with the prior year. $2,134,359 represents
unreserved fund balance of the general fund, special revenue fund and permanent fund. The capital
projects fund deficit totaling $2,127,528 will be funded through the issuance of long-term debt, state
grants and available funds in future fiscal years.

» Atthe end of the fiscal year, undesignated fund balance for the general fund totaled $560,211, or 6.3
percent of total general fund expenditures.

» The Town’s total bonded debt increased by $6,396,466 during the fiscal year; $6,896,000 of new debt was
issued for school and other remodeling, an ambulance, roads and sidewalks, equipment, computers and

sewer infrastructure projects.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements, which consists
of the following three components:

1. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements

3. Notes to the basic financial statements

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town’s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, earned

but unused vacation leave, etc.).
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

Governmental activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, trash disposal,
health and human services, culture and recreation and debt service - interest. Business-type activities include the

water and sewer operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15-17 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into

the following categories and are described below:

1. Governmental funds
2. DProprietary funds
3. TFiduciary funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as
well as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be

useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term effect of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 17 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the general, stabilization (special revenue), school construction (capital projects), community
preservation (special revenue), and coast guard houses (capital projects) funds, each of which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other 12 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation

titled nonmajor governmental funds.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 18-23 of this report.

Proprietary funds
The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund.

The enterprise fund is used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses an enterprise fund to account for its water and sewer operations,

which is considered to be a major fund.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-26 of this report.
Town of Nahant, Massachusetts 6 Required Supplementary Information



Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the Town’s programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to

that used for proprietary funds.

Agency funds are reported and combined into a single, aggregate presentation in the fiduciary fund financial
statements under the caption “agency funds”.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 27 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 28-

50 of this report,
Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information regarding the Town’s budget comparison for the general fund. Such information can

be located on pages 51-54 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The following tables present current and prior year data on the government-wide financial statements,

Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The
Town's assets exceeded liabilities by $19,584,272 at the close of the fiscal year and are summarized as follows:
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Assets
Current assets..............ceeevinnn, $ 2,964,485 § 5,062,352 $ 435,551 % 911,854 3,400,036 5,974,206
Noncurrent assets (excluding
capital assets)................... 96,555 85,113 - - 96,555 85,113
Capital assets (net).................. 21,110,038 16,328,369 6,891,189 6,392,210 28,001,227 22,720,579
Total assets................uunves 24,171,078 21,475,834 7,326,740 7,304,064 31,497,818 28,779,898
Liabilities
Current liabilities
(excluding debt)................ 540,658 1,343,530 210,788 14,787 751,446 1,358,317
Noncurrent liabilities
(excluding debt)................ 284,000 245,000 10,800 13,000 294,800 258,000
Currentdebt..............oois 2,699,000 6,063,050 386,534 598,024 3,085,534 6,661,074
Noncurrent debt..................... 5,935,000 210,000 1,846,766 1,751,300 7,781,766 1,961,300
Total liabilities.................. 9,458,658 7,861,580 2,454,888 2,377,111 11,913,546 10,238,691
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets
(net of related debt)........... 12,588,859 10,541,369 4,657,889 4,042,886 17,246,748 14,584,255
Restricted.........c.ccoeviiiiiniiinns 800,234 461,386 B = 800,234 461,386
Unrestricted.............ccoooevvnn 1,323,327 2,611,499 213,963 884,067 1,537,290 3,495,566
Total net assets................. $ 14712420 $ 13,614,254 $ 4,871,852 $ 4,926,953 19,584,272 $ 18,541,207

The largest portion of the Town'’s net assets (88.1%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, works of
art, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, library books, vehicles and
infrastructure), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. These capital assets are used to

provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the

investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to

repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to

liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town’s net assets (4.1%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets (7.8% or $1,537,290) may be used to
meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Of this amount, $1,323,327 may be used to support
governmental activities and $213,963 may be used to support business-type activities.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town reports positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both
for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

Town of Nahant, Massachusetts
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2007

Changes in Net Assets

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the Town’s total net assets increased by $1,043,065, compared to an
increase of $2,417,550 in the prior fiscal year. These amounts are summarized as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services. .......coo...uvvvivvieeeeneneenn. $ 1,184,161 $ 1,200,030 $ 1,706,847 $ 1,752,066 §$ 2,891,008 $ 2,952,09%
Operating grants and contributions. 340,218 392,535 - - 340,218 392,535
Capital grants and contributions................... 839,609 1,858,766 - - 839,609 1,858,766
General Revenues:
Real estate, personal property taxes
and tax Hens..........ooviiiiiie i ercininrennns 5,954,270 5,727,608 - - 5,954,270 5,727,608
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.............. 475,327 522,946 - - 475,327 522,946
Penalties and interest on taxes...................... 23,441 21,623 - - 23,441 21,623
Community preservation surcharges.............. 142,493 136,344 - - 142,493 136,344
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs..............cooeeeiivivinnennns 1,398,391 1,265,916 - - 1,398,391 1,265,916
Unrestricted investment income.................... 114,776 90,125 - - 114,776 90,125
Total revenues..........cooeecvnviunieiiie s 10,472,686 11,215,893 1,706,847 1,752,066 12,179,533 12,967,959
Expenses
General government...........cccocvveeviiiiiiiiieeennnnn, 1,098,430 1,085,119 - - 1,098,430 1,085,119
Public safety.........ccocvvviiiiiiiiiiiniiiene e 2,426,537 2,285,206 . - 2,426,537 2,285,206
Education..........cooouviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4,389,542 4,319,761 - - 4,389,542 4,319,761
Public WOrKS...icvuivsieiimiiiiiiieiiiiiniisiieiiivaseiiins 756,988 660,042 - - 756,988 660,042
Trash disposaliysyssssssansissnssness smmiss sxcsvnsiuiviveiie 350,468 319,023 - - 350,468 319,023
Health and human services............c..ocvvvinneennnn. 122,981 114,737 - - 122,981 114,737
Culture and recreation..............c.ocovvrevieerereininns 370,273 318,727 - - 370,273 318,727
Debt service - interest.........ocoociveiiiiiiiniieviiiinnns 411,286 172,171 - - 411,286 172,171
Water/Sewer - - 1,209,963 1,275,623 1,209,963 1,275,623
Total eXPenses..........uvvvrieriiriiininieereinnsinnn, 9,926,505 9,274,786 1,209,963 1,275,623 11,136,468 10,550,409
Change in net assets before transfers..............oieevueenn 546,181 1,941,107 496,884 476,443 1,043,065 2,417,550
Transfers, Net.........cocouvviviiiiieii i 551,985 86,875 (551,985) (86,875) & =
Change in netassets...........coooeevvviiienieneeenviveniinnnan, 1,098,166 2,027,982 (55,101) 389,568 1,043,065 2,417,550
Net assets - beginning of year...................coooeiiiini, 13,614,254 11,586,272 4,926,953 4,537,385 18,541,207 16,123,657
Net assets - end of year.............c.vvvvveeeinniniiiivennnn, $ 14,712,420 §$ 13,614,254 $ 4871852 % 4,926,953 § 19,584,272 % 18,541,207

Governmental activities increased the Town’s net assets by $1,098,166. In the prior year, governmental activities
increased the Town’s net assets by $2,027,982. The key element of this change is a decrease in reimbursements

from the Massachusetts School Building Authority of approximately $1,179,000.

Business-type activities decreased the Town's net assets by $55,101. In the prior year, business-type activities

increased the Town's net assets by $389,568. The key element of this change is a transfer ($462,540) from the

water/sewer enterprise fund to the general fund for net assets accumulated from fiscal years 2004 through 2006

when the water/sewer activity was reported as an enterprise fund for financial reporting purposes only

(internally the activity was accounted for in the general fund). Beginning in fiscal year 2007, the Water/Sewer

enterprise fund is a legally adopted enterprise fund.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Fund Financial Statement Analysis

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal

requirements,

Governmental funds

The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at

the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance totaling
$155,638, an increase of $2,637,577 in comparison with the prior year. $1,623,076 represents undesignated fund
balance of the general fund, special revenue fund and permanent fund. The capital projects fund deficit
(including the school construction and coast guard houses major funds) totaling $2,127,528 will be funded
through the issuance of long-term debt, state grants and available funds in future fiscal years. The remainder of
fund balance is designated or reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already

been committed to:

Liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period ($29,501)
Perpetual permanent funds ($25,150)

Other specific purposes ($94,156)

Fund a portion of the fiscal year 2008 operating budget ($511,283)

YVVVY

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, undesignated fund
balance of the general fund totaled $560,211, while total fund balance was $1,100,995. As a measure of the general
fund'’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both undesignated fund balance and total fund balance to total
general fund expenditures. Undesignated fund balance represents 6.3% of total general fund expenditures, while
total fund balance represents 12.4% of that same amount.

The balance of the Town’s general fund increased $350,967 during fiscal year 2007. Although the Town'’s net
change in fund balance on a budgetary basis (excluding encumbrances and continuing appropriations) was a
decrease of approximately $117,000, the general fund received an unbudgeted transfer from the water/sewer
enterprise fund in the amount of $462,540 for fund balances accumulated from fiscal years 2004 through 2006
when the water/sewer activity was reported as an enterprise fund for financial reporting purposes only
(internally the activity was accounted for in the general fund).

Financial highlights of the Town's other major governmental funds are as follows:

The fund balance of the stabilization fund (special revenue) increased by $54,345 during the current fiscal year.
This is attributable to transfers from the general fund and investment income.

The fund balance of the school construction fund (capital projects) increased by $1,539,931 during the current
fiscal year. The fund recognized $426,063 in intergovernmental revenues and $5,693,580 in proceeds of bonds and

notes, Expenditures of $4,579,712 were incurred during the fiscal year.

The fund balance of the community preservation fund (special revenue) increased by $369,528 during the current
fiscal year. The fund recognized $142,741 in surcharges, $137,073 in intergovernmental revenues, $21,349 of
investment income and $450,000 in proceeds of bonds and notes. Expenditures of $381,635 were incurred during

the fiscal year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

The fund balance of the coast guard houses fund (capital projects) decreased by $24,940 during the current fiscal
year. This is attributable to expenditures that will be funded in future fiscal years through the issuance of long-

term debt and available funds.

Proprietary fund

The Town's proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the water/sewer enterprise fund at the end of the year amounted to $213,963. The
water/sewer fund had a decrease in net assets for the year of $55,101. Other factors concerning the finances of
this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the Town’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original general fund budget (including prior year encumbrances and continuing appropriations) of
$8,753,882 was increased by $100,085 (1.1%) during the fiscal year. The following table summarizes the increase:

Purpose of Increase Amount Funding Source
Transfer to stabilization fund........................ $ 53,500 Undesignated fund balance
Debt service.................cc i, 33,500 Undesignated fund balance
Public works.........ccccovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinieiiiiinn, 10,000 Overlay surplus
Reserve tundususissemmis s 1,900 Overlay surplus
Prior year bills...........ccoeevvnviiiiiiinsiiiireniiannn, 1,185 Overlay surplus
Total increasesiiasssvsssiivsiminz s $ 100,085

During the year, revenues and other financing sources exceeded budgetary estimates, while expenditures and
encumbrances and continuing appropriations were less than budgetary estimates, resulting in an actual increase
in fund balance that exceeded the final amended budget amount by approximately $354,000.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets

The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities at the end of the fiscal
year totaled $28,001,227 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, works
of art, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, library books, vehicles and
infrastructure. The total increase in the investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year totaled 23.2% (a
21.0% increase for governmental activities and a 2.2% increase for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events that occurred during the current fiscal year included the following:

Johnson School construction ($4,580,000)

Road and sidewalk infrastructure improvements ($238,000)

Nahant Life Saving Station renovations ($145,000)

Continued upgrades of the water and sewer infrastructure ($688,000)

VVYY
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Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

The following table summarizes the Town's capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Land........cooooiviincc, $ 7,536,086 % 7,536,086 $ - 5 - % 7,536,086 % 7,536,086
Works of art.....c.coevvveieiiveenann, 107,500 107,500 . - 107,500 107,500
Land improvements................. 405,207 315,829 - - 405,207 315,829
Buildings and improvements...... 10,447,151 5,841,762 - = 10,447,151 5,841,762
Machinery and equipment......... 774,092 759,552 - - 774,092 759,552
Library books............coceviennnenn. 158,872 154,007 - - 158,872 154,007
Vehicles.......oocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinns 451,581 519,744 - - 451,581 519,744
Infrastructure..........c.coovinnnnn. 1,229,549 1,093,889 6,891,189 6,392,210 8,120,738 7,486,099
Total capital assets................... $ 21,110,038 $ 16,328,369 $ 6,891,189 $ 6392210 $ 28,001,227 $ 22,720,579

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 41-42 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt outstanding was $8,767,300, which is backed by the full
faith and credit of the Town, and is summarized as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
General obligation bonds..................cooevviennn $ 5994,000 $ 45,000 $ 1,698,090 $ 1,470,400 $ 7,692,090 $ 1,515,400
Federally taxable general obligation bonds....... 180,000 240,000 - - 180,000 240,000
State house notes.........ocovvviiiiii i 360,000 - - - 360,000 -
MWRANOES....ovvieiiiiii e ses i - - 535,210 615,434 535,210 615,434
Total bonds and notes.............ccceeovivrieeeennnnn, $ 6534000 $ 285000 $ 2233300 $ 2085834 $ 8767300 $ 2,370,834

The Town'’s total bonded debt increased by $6,396,466 (269.8%) during the current fiscal year; $6,896,000 of new
debt was issued for school and other remodeling, an ambulance, roads and sidewalks, equipment, computers and

sewer infrastructure projects.
The Town has an Aaa rating from Moody’s.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt the Town may issue to 5% of its total assessed valuation.
The current debt limit is $42,290,713.

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 on pages 44-48 of this report.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The development of the fiscal year 2008 general fund operating budget was influenced by three major factors:
employee health insurance costs, contractual salary increases and limitations on the property tax levy imposed by

Proposition 2 V2.

Budgeted employee health insurance costs increased by 11% from $585,000 to $650,036. As a percentage of the
Town'’s total budget, health insurance costs now consume 6.7% of the Town's operating budget.

Approximately 90% of school employees and 75% of municipal employees are covered by collective bargaining
agreements. In fiscal year 2008, negotiated salary increases ranged from 3.0% to 4.5%.

Property taxes in Massachusetts’ municipalities are limited to a growth of 2.5% plus a factor for new construction,
unless the voters elect to approve an increase for operating expenses or debt service for a specific project. This
limitation, exclusive of debt previously excluded from Proposition 2 %, provided for an increase of property taxes

of $166,935 (2.8%).

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with an
interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Town Accountant, 334 Nahant Road, Nahant,

Massachusetts 01908.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2007

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
ASSETS Activities Activities Total
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents................cccooeeeivreeernennnnnn. . 3 1,825,325 % 19,280 1,844,605
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 767,451 108,173 875,624
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Real estate and personal property taxes........................ 79,501 - 79,501

Tax and utility Hems...............ooceivcinriciie e, 67,362 4,774 72,136

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.........ccoecvrireerrreenss 70,078 - 70,078

Community preservation surcharges...............c..vuu..... 1,409 - 1,409

WAt iiaiitnivermia rsontoes exomspmmpennass e - 162,405 162,405

Sewer.. - 140,919 140,919

Trash......covieunees 3,846 - 3,846

Parking violations........ 17,773 17,773

Departmental and other... 18,919 - 18,919

Intergovernmental............uuuiriiinmrnranrerereeernnns 112,821 - 112,821

Total CUTTent @SSEtS. ... uvveeivissiesisssiineeieieiireaninns 2,964,485 435,551 3,400,036
Noncurrent assets:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Real estate tax deferrals............cooceuvviviirnniereeiorienenns 96,555 - 96,555
Capital assets not being depreciated................c.coeeeinnne.... 7,643,586 - 7,643,586
Capital assets, net of accurnulated depreciation.................. 13,466,452 6,891,189 20,357,641

Total noNCUrrent assels..........cccovvvveiveesreneennnrenns 21,206,593 6,891,189 28,097,782
Total assets........oovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 24,171,078 7,326,740 31,497,818
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable 176,877 203,871 380,748
Accrued payroll.........cocceeeiiiiiieiiieen, 71,710 5,717 77427
Other liabilities............veviieiiiiiniince e ceeeeeeeniniviien, 22,041 - 22,041
ACCTU INEETESE. .. ueievieicvr e e eeere e e eeeeeer e 238,030 - 238,030
Compensated abSENCeS. ... ...vuvviiviireiieeeeeeeirirreenesnineres 32,000 1,200 33,200
Short-term notes payable...............coooveeiiiviveiiviirinnn 2,100,000 - 2,100,000
Long-term bonds and notes payable..................ccooiiiieennen. 599,000 386,534 985,534
Total current Habilities. ........vrvreesvrsnsierererinirerieenen. 3,239,658 597,322 3,836,980
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences............cccceeeeriiiiinneeesinnne. . 284,000 10,800 294,800
Long-term bonds and notes payable 5,935,000 1,846,766 7,781,766
Total noncurrent liabilities. .........eererinriiereniiierinens 6,219,000 1,857,566 8,076,566
Total liabilities..........covvivivinriaiansnns ceraireas 9,458,658 2,454,888 11,913,546
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...................... 12,588,859 4,657,889 17,246,748
Restricted for:

Community preservaton...............ccceievieiiieiieninnneins.s 618,894 - 618,894

Permanent funds:

Expendable............ccooeeiiiininniiiiiin e 62,034 - 62,034
Nonexpendable..........ccoovviiiiiiniiiiiniiiiiii . 25,150 25,150

Other specific purposes. . 94,156 - 94,156
Unrestricte i s i s i i i et i mmerans 1,323,327 213,963 1,537,290
TOtal NEt ASSELS. .....\iieviieeieet st e e e e e e eraes $ 14,712,420 $ 4,871,852 19,584,272

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)/
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributons Revenue
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government..................... $ 1,098,430 $ 505,668 % 47,646 % 137,073 $ (408,043)
Public safety.........cccoeeviiinninnien, 2,426,537 58,245 88,211 - (2,280,081)
Education............coovvieiiiiinnnnn, 4,389,542 106,957 131,149 538,884 (3,612,552)
Public works........cccovviiiviiiiniinn.. 756,988 131,513 29,788 163,652 (432,035)
Trash disposal..........c.ccooiivveienne, 350,468 342,041 - - (8,427)
Health and human services............. 122,981 807 - - (122,174)
Culture and recreation.................. 370,273 38,930 26,793 - (304,550)
Debt service - interest.........ocevvivenn. 411,286 = 16,631 - (394,655)
Total governmental activities..... 9,926,505 1,184,161 340,218 839,609 (7,562,517)
Business-type activities:
Water/Sewer.........coooeeeviveenninn., 1,209,963 1,706,847 - < 496,884
Total primary government...................... $ 11,136,468 $ 2,891,008 $ 340,218 § 839,609 $ (7,065,633)
See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Changes in net assets:
Net (expense)/revenue (from previous page)............... $ (7,562,517) $ 496,884 $  (7,065,633)
General revenues:
Real estate, personal property taxes and tax liens..... 5,954,270 - 5,954,270
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes...........ovvvvvn... 475,327 - 475,327
Penalties and interest on taxes.............o.vuvervnvvnnn, 23,441 - 23,441
Community preservation surcharges..................... 142,493 - 142,493
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs...........cc..ccccvveiiiiiin 1,398,391 - 1,398,391
Unrestricted investment income.............o.oovvvvnin, 114,776 - 114,776
TYansfers, Net .....ccoooeiiniiiiiiii i, 551,985 (551,985) -
Total general revenues and transfers.......................... 8,660,683 (551,985) 8,108,698
Change in net assets.......cv.uvveenierreeeieeeineeesiirennnns 1,098,166 (55,101) 1,043,065
Net assets - beginning of year................ccocvvvivviniinn. 13,614,254 4,926,953 18,541,207
Net assets - end of year..........cccooeeeeiiviiieiiiiiiiiiieennn, $ 14,712,420 $ 4,871,852 $ 19,584,272
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2007
School
General Stabilization Construction
ASSETS
Cash and cash eqUIValENES..........c.vuiiiieiiiiiiieriiiiic e $ 1,327,827 $ 74,350 $ -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Real estate and personal property taxes...........cccceeiierririeerenieniinnnininen, 79,501 s -

Real estate tax deferrals..........ccooiviviiiiiiiiiii 96,555 - -

Tax and trash Lems. ......o.ii i ettt e v s e arenaaeanans 66,545 - -

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.............uviiveiiiiiiiiiniin e 70,078 5 -

Community preservation surcharges..............cccoocciniiiiinn i, - - -

Trash. ... 3,846 . #

Parking violations. ...t 17,773 - -

Departmental and other.......cociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin i e 18,919 - =

Intergovernmental...........ccooviiiiiriiiri e - - 112,821
Due from other funds...........c..oooiiiiiiiiini i e 74,221 4 -
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents.................c..ccccciiinni i, - - S
TOTAL ASSETS ..ottt $ 1,755,265 $ 74,350 $ 112,821
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Warrants payable. i s s e e S $ 144,518 $ - 8 -

Accrued payToll..........coviiiiiiiii 67,984 - -

Other Habilies. ... ovivin st e et v ta e 22,041 - -

Deferred reVenUe. ............ooiiviiiiiiiiii e 353,217 - 112,821

Due t0 other funds............cocooriiiiiiiiiii e, - - 74,221

Accrued short-term INEErest. ..........ooiviiiriiii e 66,510 - -

Short-term notes payable...............cocoooiiiiiii - 5 =
TOTAL LIABILITIES. .. ...ouniiiniciiiiiiii i e e e e e e aanee e 654,270 = 187,042
FUND BALANCES:

Reserved for:

Encumbrances and continuing appropriations.................cccoeev e, 29,501 - -
Perpetual permanent funds...................ccoon 2 - -
Other Specific PUIPOSES..........ivviviiiiiii e aereee - = *
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent year's expenditures...........cocoioviiiis G 511,283 - e
Undesignated, reported in:
General fund.............oooeiiiii e, 560,211 - -
Special revenue funds..............cocooiiii - 74,350 -
Capital projects funds...............coc - - (74,221)
Permanent funds...............coooiiiii - 5 -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES. .. ..coiiiiiiiiininiies s vnnnssas s snnssnia s e 1,100,995 74,350 (74,221)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES..........cccooiiiiiiiiiininiieiienennn $ 1,755,265 $ 74,350 § 112,821
See notes to basic financial statements.
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Nonmajor Total
Community Coast Guard Governmental Governmental
Preservation Houses Funds Funds
8 - 8 - 8 423,148 § 1,825,325
- - - 79,501
- - - 96,555
817 - B 67,362
- - B 70,078
1,409 - - 1,409
- - - 3,846
- - - 17,773
- - - 18,919
- - - 112,821
& - - 74,221
631,926 27,421 108,104 767,451
% 634,152 § 27421 % 531,252 $ 3,135,261
$ 15,258 § - % 17,101 $ 176,877
- - 3,726 71,710
- - - 22,041
2,226 - - 468,264
- - - 74,221
- - = 66,510
- 2,100,000 - 2,100,000
17,484 2,100,000 20,827 2,979,623
- E - 29,501
- - 25,150 25,150
- - 94,156 94,156
B - B 511,283
- - - 560,211
616,668 - 309,813 1,000,831
- (2,072,579) 19,272 (2,127,528)
- - 62,034 62,034
616,668 (2,072,579) 510,425 155,638
5 634,152 $ 27421 $ 531252 % 3,135,261
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

School
General Stabilization Construction
REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taXeSs.........covvvirierrerioiiiiis e, $ 589,155 $ - % =
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes...... 480,918 - -
Tax HenS...oo..ovviiiiiiviinincie e 19,085 - -
Community preservation surcharges... - - -
Charges for services..................... e renan s ene s e . 4,175 = =
Trash disposal...........c.c.cooviiiii 345,406 - -
INtergovernmMental ... .....ooo.ivieriiii e e 1,397,116 - 426,063
Penalties and INtereSt 0N FAXES. ., .........uuiiiiiiiiii et 23,441 - -
Licenses, permits and fE@S.............cioiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie i 481,742 - =
Fines and fOrfeitures. ... ...oooiiuuiuiuiiiiii e e et 48,333 - =
Departmental....... ..o e 68,611 - =
Contributions.......... - = #
INVESLINENE TNCOTINE 41051 5ninpioswnin e xosiainsios o visiev 3w e e a8 i3 d Ha i M AU 114,776 845 -
TOTAL REVENUES. . suusmsiisines istis e i st i s v s it s i 8,879,758 845 426,063
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General GOVEITMENE. ..........coiiiiiriet it s e 739,031 - -
Public safety 1,765,570 = =
EdUcation.........ccvovriiiiei i e . 3,250,068 - 4,579,712
Public works 457,184 - -
Trash disposal.............ciiiiiiii e e 350,468 - =
Health and himan SErvICES...........coviiieiiie e e 36,284 =" -
Culture and reCTEALION. ... .uu.iut et e 225,040 - =
Pension Demefits. ... .cociiiiuiiiii i 827,992 - -
Employee benefits 623,952 - -
Property and liability insurance.... 176,367 = -
State and county Charges.............c.ccccoiiniiiiiiiii e 92,055 - -
Debt service:
Principal , . . 75,000 - -
IIUEOTOS . ..o ct it e e 239,766 - 5
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. .....iviritimiiiietseismransoseemsammnsnsns e ssesssesssiasssssssees 8,858,777 - 4,579,712
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. .....00iieieeeamimmmssnressreerssssssseisssss s esssessesinssstesssssersnnenns 20,981 845 (4,153,649)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TTANSEOIS ITL .1t ve e e e et e 614,780 53,500 -
Proceeds of bonds and NOLES.........cocoooiiiiiiiiiiiii e - - 5,693,580
Premium from issuance of bonds and NOLeS..................coeviriiiriiiiiiiciciiieeee e, 16,631 - -
TTANSTETS OUL. ..\ i ieiiiiiiiitiit e sttt e e (301,425) = =
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)........ccoivviieiiiiniieieiinniieanenn 329,986 53,500 5,693,580
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANGCES. ....0uutititiiiieeiesiissssiimseiesie ettt eesssaseenens 350,967 54,345 1,539,931
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. .......c0vtmunresressrsrmesmemnssssnssesaeersssnes 750,028 20,005 (1,614,152)
FUND BALANCES ATEND OF YEAR.........otiiiiiieiiiioee et $ 1,100,995 $ 74,350 $ (74,221)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Nonmajor Total

Community Coast Guard Governmental Governmental
Preservation Houses Funds Funds

$ - 8 - 8 - § 5,896,155
- - - 480,918

- - - 19,085

142,741 - - 142,741

- - 83,939 88,114

- - - 345,406

137,073 - 395,277 2,355,529

- - - 23,441

- - 83,241 564,983

. - - 48,333

- - 96,286 164,897

- - 43,723 43,723

21,349 - 2,320 139,290
301,163 - 704,786 10,312,615
291,635 24,940 85,002 1,140,608

- - 103,066 1,868,636

- - 302,479 8,132,259

B - 267,884 725,068

- - - 350,468

- - 484 36,768

- - 53,675 278,715

- - - 827,992

- - - 623,952

- - - 176,367

- - - 92,055

90,000 - - 165,000

- - - 239,766

381,635 24,940 812,590 14,657,654
(80,472) (24,940) (107,804) (4,345,039)

- - 185,130 853,410

450,000 - 270,420 6,414,000

- - - 16,631

- - - (301,425)

450,000 - 455,550 6,982,616
369,528 (24,940) 347,746 2,637,577
247,140 (2,047,639) 162,679 (2,481,939)

$ 616,668 $ (2,072,579) $ 510425 $ 155,638
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Total governmental fund balances (Page 19)..........c.occiviiiiiirriiiiiii e $ 155,638

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds............... 21,110,038

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds.....................cooooiiiinnn. 468,264

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due.....................ooe.e (171,520)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds and notes payable..................ccociiiiiii (6,534,000)
Compensated aDSENCES. ... ..iiu.iivi i (316,000)
Net assets of governmental activities (Page 15)..........cooiviiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiie e $ 14,712,420

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 21)...............coecvviveerreererreenen.. $ 2,637,577

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. These amounts represent the related activity
of the current period.
Capital OUHAYS. ... ...oiiiiiiiii e
DEPTeciation. ... .uviiiii ittt e s s a e s e

5,472,313
(690,644)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable
(i.e., real estate and personal property, motor vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the
two statements. This amount represents the net change in deferred revenue.................... 143,440
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
impact on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. These amounts represent the
related activity of the current period.

BONd Proceeds. ........oviiiei i (6,414,000)

165,000

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This amount

represents the net change in accrued interest payable...................ccccccooviiivieriiiiseessennn, (171,520)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
This amount represents the net change:

Compensated absences. .uyuusssss svsssosmssasssissvssises s a e i s (44,000)

1,098,166

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2007
Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise
Fund
ASSETS Water/Sewer
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..............cocoeevreiiiiieiniiinii e e 19,280
Restricted cash and cash equivalents............cccoociiviiiiiiiiiinnin, 108,173
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
T BEEE . e 162,405
TS = TP 140,919
Utility Hens. ..o 4,774
Total CUrrent assets........ovvuiviiiiin it 435,551
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation........................ooe. 6,891,189
TOtal @SSEES...uuivn it i 7,326,740
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable..........uiiioiiiiinis e e s 203,871
Accrued PaYTOLl...c.uuuueeiieriiiiei i e e 5,717
Compensated aDSEIICES. ... .covivriuririeeriieeiiiienrerian e rsin e essaresssnas 1,200
Long-term bonds and notes payable.........c.ccoovviiiiiiiiniiiiiniinn. 386,534
Total current HabiliHes. .......c.oiviviiiiiiiiiiiiirinae s s eeeereennns 597,322
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences............vuviiiiiiiiiiiiiniimiin e 10,800
Long-term bonds and notes payable.........c.coovivieiiiiiiicinieiieiiiaiiiennnn. 1,846,766
Total noncurrent liabilities...........cocoveiiiiiiiiii e, 1,857,566
Total liabilities. ... .cuvvuiireireirieice e s eneenenes 2,454,888
FUND NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt............co.coviiiiiiiiiiinnnnn, 4,657,889
Unrestricted. ........oviii i 213,963
Total fund Net assets.......c.uvviirieiiire e 4,871,852

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise
Fund
Water/Sewer
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges fOr SErVICES. ........coevviiiuiiiiii i $ 1,687,565
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of service and administration..................veeeveviviiiiiieeeseseiines 473,681
MWRA assessment. . nsssiveisssinii it st 313,556
Lynn @sSeSSIMENE. .....uuuuvviirreiieiiiiisiiisiireseieieeeestsiesesessseseseseessesins 149,181
Depreciation... . .......... cssss s s s s iy s s s 188,790
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES........coovivnieeiiieiiirineeeioiiirieenens 1,125,208
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)........ocuuvuieeeeieiieees e 562,357
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment iNCome. ..........ccooiiuiuiiiiiiiiiie e 19,282
Interest expense...............oooiiiiiiiini e (84,755)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET........... (65,473)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS........ccuoviiisiiiiiiieii, 496,884
TRANSFERS
Transfers in............oiiiiiiiiiiii 62,795
TTANSEErs OUL. .. vv vt e (614,780)
TOTAL TRANSEERS. ......cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e {551,985)
CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS.......c.cccvtiiiaiiiiee e (55,101)
FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.........cccvvieeiiiiesii 4,926,953
FUND NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR.........ccuiiviiiiieasiiiieasieee $ 4,871,852

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise
Fund
Water/Sewer
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and USEIS...........iveiiieiiieiiiieeieie e e e e v earaans $ 1,658,745
Payments to vendors..................... (637,183)
Payments to employees (309,305)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES..........uiieriiinieiiiiiiianesreirieian e 712,257
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TraNSEETS dN.. ..ttt e 62,795
TIANSIETS OUL..... it e e et e e e e (614,780)
NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......cccoooviiiinicninne (551,985)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and NOteS..............ccvviiiiiiiiiinniiiiiiiee e 482,000
Acquisition and construction of capital sSets..............viiiviiniiiee i (483,898)
Principal payments on bonds and NOteS.............oooviviiiiiiiiirii e (598,024)
INEEIESE @XPOMSE. ... uivieiti i e e e (84,755)
NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES............... (684,677)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
INVestment iNCOMIE. ........oo.iiiiii e 19,282
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS..........ooviiiiivieiiiiin e (505,123)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
(Includes $234,042 reported as restricted cash and cash equivalents)............................ 632,576
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(Includes $108,173 reported as restricted cash and cash equivalents)...........ccccc.ooeeninn s 127,453
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating inCome (LOS5)........ccvriei ittt et s e e e e as e e e $ 562,357
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation...........c.coovviiiiiiiiii e, TS 188,790
Changes in assets and Habilities:
UHHEY HOMS. ...ttt et (1,572)
USer ChaIges. . .vvuiiiiiiic e (27,248)
WaITANES PAYADIE. .. ..ouiiiiiiiii s e (6,212)
Accrued payToll.......cooiiii e 886
Other HabIlHES. ... .. oviiiiiiiiiiciiicii et et nt e e (1,744)
Compensated abSENCES.............ovvuiiiiiiiii i e (3,000)
Total adjuStments. ..........coooveriiiiin et 149,900
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES........coooiiiiiiii e e e 5 712,257

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUND
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2007
Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents...............ccccovvviiviiiiiiiiniiie e $ 35,290
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 2,694
Liabilities due depositors.............ccoovvviuiniiiiiniiiieieiiiviiieiiven, 32,596
Total liabilities...................ccovveviiiiniiiiiiiiiniee $ 35290

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. General

The basic financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting policies are described herein.

B. Reporting Entity

The Town of Nahant, Massachusetts (Town) is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Board of
Selectmen (Board) and an appointed Town Administrator.

For financial reporting purposes, the basic financial statements include all funds, organizations, agencies, boards,
commissions and institutions that are not legally separate from the Town.

The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable as well as
other organizations for which the nature and/ or significance of their relationship with the Town are such that
exclusion would cause the Town'’s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. It has been
determined that there are no component units that require inclusion in the basic financial statements.

J[oint Venture

A joint venture is an organization (resulting from a contractual arrangement) that is owned, operated or governed
by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants
retain an ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility. Joint control means that no single
participant has the ability to unilaterally control the financial or operating policies of the joint venture.

The Town participates in one joint venture with other municipalities to pool resources and share the costs, risks
and rewards of providing goods and services to venture participants directly, or for the benefit of the general
public or specified recipients. The following table identifies the Town’s joint venture and related information:

Fiscal Year

2007
Name Purpose Address Assessment
Northeastern Metropolitan
Regional Vocational To provided vocational 100 Hemlock Road
School District................. educational services Wakefield, MA 01880 $ 77,765

The Town is indirectly liable for the Northeast Metropolitan Regional Vocational School District’s (District) debt
and other expenditures and is assessed annually for its share of operating and capital costs. Separate financial
statements may be obtained by writing to the Treasurer of the District at the address identified above.
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C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and the statement activities) report
information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. Governmental
activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from

business-type activities, which are primarily supported by user fees.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.
D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements apply all applicable Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or prior to November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements

conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in the fiscal
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility

requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or

segment. Program revenues include the following:

» Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.

» Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a specific function
or segment.

» Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a specific function or
segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Except for charges between the general fund and enterprise funds, the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct

costs and program revenues reported for the functions affected.
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Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60-days after
the end of the fiscal year. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become
measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other

grant requirements are met.
The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

The stabilization fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the accumulation of resources to provide
general and/ or capital reserves upon Town Meeting approval.

The school construction fund is a capital projects fund used to account for financial resources to be used for the
construction of the Johnson School.

The community preservation fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the 3% local real estate tax surcharge
on nonexempt property (and matching state trust fund distribution) that can be used for open space, historic
resource and affordable housing purposes. Property exempt from the surcharge consists of the first $100,000 of
all residential property and also property owned by low income or seniors with a low or moderate income as
defined by Massachusetts Department of Revenue (DOR) guidelines. Disbursements from this fund must
originate from the Community Preservation Committee and be approved by Town Meeting.

The coast guard houses fund is a capital projects fund used to account for financial resources used for the
acquisition and renovation of land and buildings (houses) formerly owned by the federal government. The
Town, through a contractual agreement with a property manager, is renting these houses to citizens. The
revenues and expenditures related to the housing rentals are accounted for in the general fund.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are
aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The special revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than capital projects
funds or permanent funds) that are restricted by law or administrative action to expenditures for specified

purposes.

The capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities (other than those financed by enterprise funds).
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The permanent fund is used to account for financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support governmental programs.

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
the proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The following major proprietary fund is reported:

The water/sewer enterprise fund is used to account for water and sewer activities. Beginning in fiscal year 2007, the
Water/Sewer enterprise fund is a legally adopted enterprise fund.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the government’s programs.

The following fiduciary fund is reported:

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity. Such assets consist of primarily of rent
payments held in escrow and student activity funds. Agency funds do not present the results of operations or

have a measurement focus.
E. Cash and Investments

-_Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments are carried at fair value.

F. Accounts Receivable

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis of

accounting, respectively.
Real Estate Taxes, Real Estate Tax Deferrals, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1st of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessor’s for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes are
due on November 1t and May 1 and are subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by the respective

due date.

Real estate tax liens are processed during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year on delinquent properties and are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they are processed.
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Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the Town and are recorded as
receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles to the Town. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle

multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of value.

Community Preservation Surcharges

Community preservation surcharges are levied annually and at a rate of 3% of residents’ real estate tax bills with
exemptions for the first $100,000 of residential property and property owned by qualified persons with low
income and seniors (60+) with low or moderate income as defined by DOR guidelines. The surcharge is due with
the real estate tax on November 1¢t and May 1%t and is subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by the
due date. Overdue surcharges are included on the tax liens processed on delinquent real estate taxes. Surcharges
are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year issued.

Water and Sewer and Utility Liens

User fees are levied tri-annually based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties and interest if
they are not paid by the respective due date. Water and sewer liens are processed during the fourth quarter of
each fiscal year and are included as a lien on the property owner’s tax bill. Water and sewer charges and liens are

recorded as receivables in the fiscal year issued.

Trash

Trash fees are levied annually for each type of property that utilizes the collection service and are based upon a
third party waste collection contract. The contract is funded entirely from residence billings. Trash fees are

recorded as receivables in the fiscal year issued.

Parking Violations

Parking tickets are issued for various parking violations and are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year issued.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables consist of amounts due from ambulance charges. These receivables are
recorded when the applicable service has been performed.

Intergovernmental

Various state and federal operating and capital grants are applied for and received annually. For non-
expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. For expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized when the qualifying expenditures are
incurred and all other grant requirements are met.
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G. Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts

The allowance for uncollectible amounts is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis for
the following accounts receivable:

Personal property taxes

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
Parking violations

Departmental and other

YVVVY

As of June 30, 2007, the allowance for uncollectible amounts for personal property taxes, motor vehicle and other
excise taxes and departmental and other receivables are immaterial and therefore not reported.

The following types of accounts receivable are secured via the lien process and are considered 100% collectible.
Accordingly, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not reported.

Real estate taxes, real estate tax deferrals and tax liens
Community preservation surcharges

Water and sewer and utility liens

Trash

YV VY

Intergovernmental receivables are considered 100% collectible,

H. Inventories

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
government-wide and fund financial statements and therefore are not reported.

I. Restricted Assets

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature of the availability of the asset.
Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of other governments,
or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

J.  Capital Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which consist of land, works of art, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery
and equipment, library books, vehicles and infrastructure (e.g., roads, water mains, sewer mains, and similar
items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column of the government-wide

financial statements.

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Except for capital
assets of the governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements, construction period

interest is capitalized on constructed capital assets.
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All purchases and construction costs in excess of $5,000 are capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction,
respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

Capital assets (excluding land and works of art) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful
lives of capital assets are as follows:

Estimated

Useful
Life

Capital Asset Type (in years)
Land improvements...................cooeeeenin, 10-30
Buildings and improvements.................. 6-40
Machinery and equipment..................... 3-40
Library books............ccccooovvviiiiininnnnn, 3-10
Vehicles...............coooev 3-15
Infrastructure..............ccocovenieiiniiinnnnn, 5-50

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are subject to capitalization.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the fiscal year of the purchase.

K. Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net assets as “internal

balances”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds”
or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

L. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the
statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net”.
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Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

M. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue at the fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not meet the available
criterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial

statements (full accrual).
N. Net Assets and Fund Equity

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Assets)

Net assets are reported as restricted when amounts are restricted by outside parties for a specific future use.

Net assets have been “restricted” for the following:

“Community preservation” represents amounts restricted for the purpose of acquiring land for conservation,
recreational, and affordable housing purposes.

“Permanent funds - expendable” represents amounts held in trust for which the expenditures are restricted by
various trust agreements.

“Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may

be expended.

“Other specific purposes” represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

Fund balances are reserved for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by
outside parties for a specific future use. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that

are subject to change.
Fund balances have been “reserved for” the following:

“Encumbrances and continuing appropriations” represents amounts obligated under purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments for expenditures that are being carried over to the ensuing fiscal year.

“Perpetual permanent funds” represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may be

expended.
“Other specific purposes” represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.
Fund balances have been “designated for” the following:

“Subsequent year’s expenditures” represents amounts appropriated for the fiscal year 2008 operating budget.
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O. Long-term Debt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net assets.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources when the debt is
issued. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond
premiums are reported as other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general

government expenditures.
P. Investment Income

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income from the proprietary fund is retained in the fund.

Q. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities upon employee retirements and resignations.

R. Post Retirement Benefits

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

In addition to providing pension benefits, health insurance coverage is provided (on a pay-as-you-go basis) for
retired employees and their survivors in accordance with MGL Chapter 32. These costs are recognized by
recording the employer’s 50% to 65% (dependent on the plan chosen) share of insurance premiums in the general
fund in the fiscal year paid. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, this expenditure totaled approximately
$133,000. There were approximately 45 participants eligible to receive benefits at June 30, 2007.
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S. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

T. Total Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data
in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by Town Meeting vote. The Finance
Committee presents an annual budget to Town Meeting, which includes estimates of revenues and other
financing sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. Town Meeting, which has full
authority to amend and/ or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.

Increases to the annual budget subsequent to Annual Town Meeting approval require Special Town Meeting
approval.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others are
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior
fiscal year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year. These carry forwards
are included as part of the subsequent fiscal year’s original budget.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized for an
appropriation account. However, the Town is statutorily required to pay debt service, regardless of whether such

amounts are appropriated.

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The
original fiscal year 2007 approved budget (including prior year encumbrances and continuing appropriations) for
the general fund authorized $8,753,882 in appropriations and other amounts to be raised. During fiscal year 2007,
supplemental appropriations totaling $100,085 were authorized.

The Accountant’s office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control
is exercised through the accounting system.

The budgetary comparison schedule presented in the accompanying required supplementary information

presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual results. The originally adopted
budget is presented for purposes of comparison to the final, amended budget.
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Fund Deficits

At June 30, 2007, the following fund deficits exist:

Fund Amount Funding Source
Coast Guard houses (major fund)...... $ 2,072,579 Issuance of long-term debt; available funds
School construction (major fund)....... 74,221 State grant

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authorize the Town to invest temporarily idle cash in bank
term deposits and certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government,
with maturities of one year or less; U.S. treasury or agency repurchase agreements with maturities of not more
than 90 days; money market accounts; and the state treasurer’s investment pool - the Massachusetts Municipal

Depository Trust (MMDT).

The MMDT meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in accordance with applicable state
laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee. The reported value of the pool is

the same as the fair value of pool shares.

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds with unrestricted cash and
investments. The deposits and investments of the permanent funds are held separately from other Town funds.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits may not be
recovered. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. As of June 30, 2007, $2,427,062
of the Town’s bank balance of $2,871,446 was uninsured and uncollateralized and therefore exposed to custodial

credit risk.

Investments Summary

The Town's investment at June 30, 2007 consisted of $76,265 in MMDT.

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Town does not have a policy for interest rate risk of debt securities.

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its
obligations. The Town does not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. As of June 30, 2007, the Town's

investment in MMDT did not have a credit quality rating.
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NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2007, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and nonmajor and fiduciary funds in
the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible amounts, are as follows:

Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes

Real estate tax deferrals..............ccocovi. .
Tax and trash liens...............cccovivvnnin.s,

Parking violations..............c.......oooce
Departmental and other........................
Intergovernmental.........................cos

Allowance

Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
$ 79501 % - % 79,501
...... 96,555 = 96,555
...... 67,362 - 67,362
...... 70,078 - 70,078
...... 1,409 - 1,409
3,846 - 3,846
...... 114,615 (96,842) 17,773
...... 18,919 - 18,919
...... 112,821 - 112,821
$ 565106 $ (96,842) § 468,264

The Commonwealth has approved school construction assistance. The assistance, which is administered by the
MSBA, provides reimbursements for approved school construction costs. During fiscal year 2007, $912,113 of
such assistance was received. In fiscal year 2008, $112,821 is expected to be received for expenditures incurred in
fiscal year 2007. Accordingly, a $112,821 intergovernmental receivable and corresponding deferred revenue have
been reported in the governmental funds financial statements. The deferred revenue has been recognized as

revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial statements.

At June 30, 2007, receivables for the water/sewer enterprise fund, including the applicable allowances for

uncollectible amounts, are as follows:

Receivables:

Town of Nahant, Massachusetts
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Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
...... $ 162405 $ - $ 162,405
...... 140,919 - 140,919
...... 4,774 - 4,774
$ 308,098 $ - $ 308,098
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Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to
be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. The following identifies the various components of
deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds:

Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
Receivable type:

Real estate and personal property taxes.................... $ 79501 $ - $ 79501
Real estate tax deferrals..............c.ocoovvieeiiiiniieninn, 96,555 - 96,555
Tax and trash liens..............ccoovvieniiviiinnin i, 66,545 817 (a) 67,362
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes........................ 70,078 - 70,078
Community preservation surcharges........................ - 1,409 (a) 1,409
Trash......coveeriiBe s B e Moenen e abls Tore ST e T o1 TR e e« o« PR 3,846 - 3,846
Parking violations.............ccooeiveiviiiniinie e, 17,773 - 17,773
Departmental and other................ccoceviinn, 18,919 - 18,919
Intergovernmental (state school construction)............ - 112,821 (b) 112,821

Total....coi $ 353,217 $ 115,047 $ 468,264

(@) Community preservation fund (major fund)
(b) School construction fund (major fund)

Town of Nahant, Massachusetts 40 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

NOTES5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Total capital assets not being depreciated......

Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvements...............o.oocieviiniiiinnenns,

Buildings and improvements...................
Machinery and equipment......................
Library books............ccocevvveiniiereiiniiinnnn,

VERICIES. .ouiviiiir e e

Total capital assets being depreciated...

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements.............cccccoveivvennnnnes

Buildings and improvements...................

Machinery and equipment.................cccoeeeeenis

Library books..........cooocciiviiiiiniiiiiniiinnn.
Vehicles...oovuuiiviiii e

Total accumulated depreciation...........

Total capital assets being depreciated, net...............

Total governmental activities capital assets, net

Town of Nahant, Massachusetts

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

7,536,086 $ - $ - % 7,536,086
107,500 = - 107,500
7,643,586 = - 7,643,586
524,778 107,461 - 632,239
8,364,593 4,911,679 . 13,276,272
1,593,366 153,702 - 1,747,068
337,082 36,890 s 373,972
1,526,305 24,196 (27,000) 1,523,501
2,008,574 238,385 2,246,959
14,354,698 5,472,313 (27,000) 19,800,011
(208,949) (18,083) - (227,032)
(2,522,831) (306,290) - (2,829,121)
(833,814) (139,162) - (972,976)
(183,075) (32,025) - (215,100)
(1,006,561) (92,359) 27,000 (1,071,920)
(914,685) (102,725) - (1,017,410)
(5,669,915) (690,644) 27,000 (6,333,559)
8,684,783 4,781,669 - 13,466,452
16,328,369 $ 4,781,669 % - $ 21,110,038
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:
INfrastruCtiure. .. ....oooveivivis e $ 9,050,552 % 687,769 $ - % 9,738,321
Less accumulated depreciation for:
INfrastructure. .........oieieveeeeecivvi e, (2,658,342) (188,790) - (2,847,132)
Total business-type activities capital assets, net........ $ 6,392,210 $ 498,979 % -5 6,891,189

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government...............c.ooeiiniiiniiini s $ 84,546
Public safety...........ccoooiiiiiiii 122,244
Education..........ooooiiiiiii 170,696
Public WOTKS........oooiiiiiiinici e 199,153
Health and human Services................ccoveiiiiiiiiiineniinenn, 2,200
Culture and recreation.............cccoveeeviiiiiiii i, 111,805
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities.............. $ 690,644

Business-Type Activities:
Water/SeWer. . ...t $ 188,790

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Receivables and payables between funds at June 30, 2007, are summarized as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General fund School construction (major fund) $ 74221 (1)

(1) Represents advance-funding of a state grant from the MSBA
Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, are summarized as follows:

Transfers In:

Nonmajor Water/Sewer
General Stabilization Governmental Enterprise
Transfers Out: Fund Fund Funds Fund Total
General Fund.......................0. $ - 8 53,500 $ 185,130 % 62,795 $ 301,425 (1)
Water/Sewer Enterprise Fund.... 614,780 - - - 614,780 (2)
$ 614,780 § 53,500 $ 185,130 $ 62,795 $ 916,205
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(1) Represents budgeted transfers to the stabilization fund ($53,500), various capital projects funds to pay down
short-term notes ($167,630), the retirement special revenue fund ($15,000), the wharf insurance special revenue
fund ($2,500) and the water/sewer enterprise fund to pay down short-term notes and other debt service ($62,795)

(2) Represents transfer of indirect costs to the general fund ($152,240) and transfer of funds ($462,540)
accumulated from fiscal years 2004 through 2006 when the water/sewer activity was reported as an enterprise
fund for financial reporting purposes only (internally the activity was accounted for in the general fund)
NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING

Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

»  Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue anticipation notes
(RAN) or tax anticipation notes (TAN).

» Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BAN) or grant anticipation notes (GAN).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and water/sewer

enterprise fund, respectively.

Details related to the short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, is as follows:

Notes Payable - Governmental Funds

Origination Maturity Interest Balance at Balance at
Type Description Date Date Rate 6/30/2006 Increases Decreases 6/30/2007
BAN  Roads and sidewalks............ 11/17/05 09/14/06 3.20% $ 76,350 $ - $ (76,350) $ -
BAN  Johnson school study............ 09/15/05 09/14/06 3.03% 225,000 - (225,000)
BAN  Johnson school study............ 11/17/05 09/14/06 3.20% 225,000 - (225,000)
BAN  Ambulance........................ 11/17/05 09/14/06 3.20% 71,100 - (71,100) -
BAN  Fire equipment................... 11/17/05 09/14/06 3.20% 32,400 - (32,400)
BAN  School equipment................ 11/17/05 09/14/06 3.20% 12,700 - (12,700) -
BAN  Coast guard houses.............. 11/17/05 09/14/06  3.20% 2,100,000 - (2,100,000) -
BAN  Coast guard houses.............. 09/14/06 09/13/07 4.00% - 2,100,000 - 2,100,000
BAN  Street sweeper.................... 11/17/05  09/14/06 3.20% 94,400 - (94,400)
BAN  Computers............ccoeervnnenn. 11/17/05 09/14/06  3.20% 56,650 - (56,650) -
BAN  Kelley Greens building......... 11/17/05 09/14/06 3.20% 56,700 - (56,700) -
BAN DPW truck..........cceeeiiinnnns 11/17/05 09/14/06 3.20% 37,750 - (37,750)
BAN  School remodeling............... 09/15/05 09/14/06 3.03% 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) -
Total.......ovvvivni, $ 5,988,050 $ 2,100,000 $ (5,988,050) $ 2,100,000
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Notes Payable - Enterprise Funds

Origination ~Maturity Interest Balance at Balance at
Type Description Date Date Rate 6/30/2006 Increases Decreases 6/30/2007
BAN  Pump station/Sewer line....... 11/17/05  09/14/06 3.20% $ 218,130 % - $ (218,130) $
BAN  Pump station/Sewer line....... 11/17/05 09/14/06 3.20% 45,360 - (45,360)
Totadiv s T $ 263,490 $ - $ (263,490) $

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Chapter 44, Section 10, of the MGL authorizes indebtedness up to a limit of 5% of the equalized valuation. Debt
issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as being “inside the debt limit”. However, debt

may be authorized in excess of that limit for specific purposes. Such debt, when issued, is designated as being
“outside the debt limit”.

Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2007, and the debt service requirements are as follows:

Bonds and Notes Payable - Govermmental Funds

Outstanding Outstanding
Interest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Rate 2006 [ssued Redeemed 2007

Golf course project*............... 10.25% $ 240,000 % - $ (60,000) $ 180,000
Library bonds....................... 4.50% - 4.75% 45,000 - (15,000) 30,000
School remodeling................. 3.75% - 5.00% - 5,693,580 - 5,693,580
Ambulance..............ccc.oeenen 4.00% - 41,100 - 41,100
Roads and sidewalks............. 4.00% . 51,120 - 51,120
Equipment...................co.coe. 4.00% - 67,400 - 67,400
Computers............c.ccooevvennnns 4.00% - 37,650 - 37,650
Remodeling............cc.cccevieie 4.00% - 40,100 - 40,100
School equipment................. 4.00% - 7,300 - 7,300
Other equipment................... 4.00% - 25,750 - 25,750
Coast Guard station............... 4.70% - 450,000 (90,000) 360,000
Total governmental funds....... $ 285,000 $ 6,414,000 $ (165,000) $ 6,534,000

* Federally taxable general obligation bonds

During fiscal year 2007, the Town issued $5,964,000 of general obligation bonds for school and other remodeling,
an ambulance, roads and sidewalks, equipment and computers. The Town also issued $450,000 in state house
notes for the Coast Guard station.
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmental bonds and notes payable in future fiscal
years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2008.............. $ 599,000 $ 394,598 $ 993,598
2009.............. 550,000 244,846 794,846
2010.............. 505,000 219,310 724,310
2011.............. 390,000 195,830 585,830
2012.............. 300,000 179,600 479,600
2013.............. 300,000 167,975 467,975
2014.............. 300,000 156,725 456,725
2015, 300,000 143,600 443,600
2016............. 300,000 129,350 429,350
2017............ 300,000 115,100 415,100
2018.............. 300,000 101,600 401,600
2019.............. 300,000 89,600 389,600
2020.............. 300,000 77,600 377,600
2021.............. 300,000 65,600 365,600
2022.............. 300,000 53,600 353,600
2023.............. 300,000 41,600 341,600
2024.............. 300,000 29,600 329,600
2025............. 300,000 17,600 317,600
2026.............. 290,000 5,800 295,800
Total.............. $ 6,534,000 $ 2,429,534 $ 8,963,534
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Bonds and Notes Payable - Enterprise Fund

Outstanding Outstanding
Interest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Rate 2006 Issued Redeemed 2007

Sewer Project......ccccvverevriinnnnen. 5.00% $ 552,500 $ - % (32,500) $ 520,000
Sewer project...........ccoooviiinne. 5.00% 134,700 - (7,400) 127,300
Sewer project............oeieeiinnnn, 5.00% 188,200 - (9,410) 178,790
Water and sewer projects.......... 6.70%-7.00% 245,000 - (50,000) 195,000
Water and sewer projects.......... 5.60%-5.95% 200,000 = (100,000) 100,000
Water projects........c...oeeevvieennns 4.50%-4.75% 150,000 - (55,000) 95,000
Water note (MWRA)................ 0.00% 66,561 - (13,312) 53,249
Water note (MWRA)................ 0.00% 79,873 - (13,312) 66,561
Water note (MWRA)................ 0.00% 93,800 - (13,400) 80,400
Water note (MWRA)................ 0.00% 107,200 - (13,400) 93,800
Water note (MWRA)................ 0.00% 268,000 - (26,800) 241,200
Sewer Project...........coovcevernennns 3.75% -5.00% - 150,000 - 150,000
Sewer project.........ccocovvvveenenn. 3.75% - 5.00% - 300,000 . 300,000
Sewer Project........c...covvecrnennn. 4.00% - 32,000 - 32,000
Total enterprise fund................ $ 2,085834 $ 482,000 $  (334,534) $ 2,233,300

During fiscal year 2007, the Town issued $482,000 of general obligation bonds for various sewer projects.

The Massachusetts Water Resource Authority (MWRA) operates an Infiltration/Inflow Financial Assistance
Program for community owned collection systems. The financial assistance is in the form of interest free loans
that are payable in ten equal annual installments. At June 30, 2007, the outstanding principal amount of MWRA

loans totaled $535,210.
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for enterprise fund bonds and notes payable in future fiscal
years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2008............... $ 386,534 $ 90,362 § 476,896
2009............... 279,534 66,860 346,394
2010...........e. 234,534 57,624 292,158
201T......ceneeees 219,535 49,659 269,194
2012, 161,223 42,244 203,467
2013....ciinennns 147,910 38,036 185,946
2014.............0s 134,510 33,882 168,392
2015.......ccceenes 121,110 29,448 150,558
2016............... 121,110 24,845 145,955
2017......iels 94,310 20,242 114,552
2018............... 49,310 16,650 65,960
2019.....c0cennns 49,310 14,185 63,495
2020............... 49,310 11,720 61,030
2021.....cenneenee 49,310 9,255 58,565
2022.....000inns 49,310 6,788 56,098
2023.....000iinees 49,310 4,323 53,633
2024............... 16,810 1,858 18,668
2025.....c00nnne. 10,910 1,018 11,928
2026............... 9,410 470 9,880
e — $ 2,233300 $ 519,469 $ 2,752,769

The Town is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At]June 30, 2007, the Town had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount

Coast Guard houses...................... $ 2,100,000
School roof......cococvvniciiiniei e, 175,000
Forty steps beach............ccccovvvenn 150,000
Pump station..........coooiiieiiiiiiinnnn, 75,000
Fire truckqiuswivsanirs i s 40,000
DPW truck......oovviiiiiniiiniiiiiiiinnnn, 35,000

Total.........cooviiiviiiii $ 2,575,000
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30, Current
2006 Increases Decreases 2007 Portion
Governmental Activities:
Bonds and notes payable....... $ 285000 $ 6,414,000 $ (165000) $ 6,534,000 $ 599,000
Compensated absences......... 272,000 44,000 - 316,000 32,000
TOMH i icssrarsrrm i veds $ 557,000 $ 6,458,000 $ (165000) $ 6,850,000 $ 631,000
Business-type Activities:
Bonds and notes payable...... $ 2085834 % 482,000 $ (334,5534) $ 2,233,300 $ 386,534
Compensated absences......... 15,000 - (3,000) 12,000 1,200
Totalmrmrrm i s $ 2,100,834 $ 482,000 $ (337,534) $ 2245300 $ 387,734

The governmental activities long-term liabilities will be liquidated from the general fund and community
preservation fund. The business-type activities long-term liabilities will be liquidated from the water/sewer

enterprise fund.

NOTE 9 - RISK FINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. The Town participates in
a premium-based health care and workers’ compensation plan for its active and retired employees. The amount
of claim settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the previous three fiscal years.

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description - The Town contributes to the Essex Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Essex Regional Retirement Board. Substantially all
employees of the Town are members of the System, except for public school teachers and certain administrators
who are members of the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System (MTRS), to which the Town does not
contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the Teachers Retirement Board are the legal
responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf payments totaled approximately $474,000
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, and, accordingly, are reported in the general fund as intergovernmental
revenues and pension expenditures.

The System provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 32 of
the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Cost-of-living adjustments
granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increases in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth’s state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted after 1997 must be authorized by the Essex Regional Retirement Board and are borne by the
System. The System issues a publicly available report in accordance with guidelines established by the
Commonwealth’s Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission. That report may be obtained by
contacting the System located at 491 Maple Street, Danvers, Massachusetts, 01923,
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Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of
annual covered compensation. The Town is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide actuarial
determined contribution that is apportioned among the employers based on active current payroll. Chapter 32 of
MGL governs the contributions of plan members. The Town’s contributions to the System for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $340,826, $302,506 and $268,755, respectively, which equaled its

required contribution for each fiscal year.

Noncontributory Retirement Allowance - The Town pays the entire retirement allowance for certain retirees who
are eligible for noncontributory benefits and are not members of the System. The general fund expenditure for

fiscal year 2007 totaled approximately $13,000.

NOTE 11- COMMITMENTS

The Town has entered into, or is planning to enter into, contracts totaling approximately $500,000 for school roof
repairs, a new stairway for the forty steps beach, pump station, fire truck and DPW truck.

NOTE 12 - CONTINGENCIES

Various legal actions and claims are pending against the Town. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and
the outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at
June 30, 2007, cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the
financial position of the Town at June 30, 2007.

The Town participates in a number of federal award programs. The programs are subject to financial and
compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies
cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 13 - LEASES

The Town (Lessor) entered into an operating lease agreement (Agreement) with Birdie Golf Management (Lessee)
to manage the Kelley Greens Golf Club (Golf Club), which is owned by the Town. The Agreement provided for a
flat rate lease fee for each year of the contract, commencing January 1st of each year. The contract expired on

December 31, 2006.

Commencing on January 1, 2007, the Town (Lessor) entered into an operating lease agreement (Agreement) with
Kelley Greens at Nahant (Lessee) to manage the Golf Club. The Agreement provides for a flat rate lease fee for
each year of the contract, commencing January 1st of each year. The contract expires on December 31, 2011 with

an option to renew for an additional five-year term.

During fiscal year 2007, the Town received approximately $65,000 in rental fees related to the Golf Club. Rental
requirements in future fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Payment
2008.5. 7x o1, 7% £, 7 1 T TR $ 112,002
2009....ccc 114,002
2010 116,002
2011 118,002
2012, 59,501
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NOTE 14 - FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements:

»

Statement #43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, which is
required to be implemented during fiscal year 2009. This Statement will not impact the Town’s basic

financial statements.

Statement #45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2010. The Town is currently evaluating
the effect that this Statement will have on its basic financial statements.

Statement #48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and
Future Revenues, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2008. The Town is currently
evaluating the effect that this Statement will have on its basic financial statements.

Statement #49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, which is required to
be implemented during fiscal year 2009. The Town is currently evaluating the effect that this Statement

will have on its basic financial statements.

Statement #50, Pension Disclosures, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2008. The
Town is currently evaluating the effect that this Statement will have on its basic financial statements.

Statement #51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, which is required to be
implemented during fiscal year 2010. The Town is currently evaluating the effect that this Statement will

have on its basic financial statements.

These pronouncements will be implemented by their respective due dates.
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GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Prior Year
Encumbrances Supplemental
and Continuing Original Appropriations Final
Appropriations Budget and Transfers Budget Actual
REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes...........cccccooevnnenne. $ - $ 5877241 % - $ 5877241 $ 5,896,155
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.............cc.evervvrireienn - 524,000 - 524,000 480,918
Tax HeNS.....ouveiiiiieniiiiiii e s - - - - 19,085
Charges for seTvices..........ccccviiviiiniiinies s - 7,800 7,800 4,175
Trash disposal......... - 351,473 - 351,473 345,406
IntergovVernmental ............coovveiiiiiiniiiriuiiineiereneenenns - 916,087 - 916,087 923,320
Penalties and interest on taxes.. - 21,600 - 21,600 23,441
Licenses, permits and fEeS........c.c.ocevuevivnmiiiieereaneeiireiaeen - 297,500 - 297,500 481,742
Fines and fOrfeitlures. ... .o..uoeueiiiueiiiinieniiiseieiinrrnssnssnsorses - 53,450 - 53,450 48,333
Departmental.........co.ceiiiiiiiiiiiiiir it e . 62,450 - 62,450 68,611
INVeSTMENE INCOMMIC. .. vevv v e e e e aeens - 90,000 - 90,000 114,776
TOTALREVENUES.......ccoovriiimieriemnnierrnnsmnnriernees 8,201,601 - 8,201,601 8,405,962
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General gOVEITIMENLE..........vvririvvvreeeies i irerarnerireeeeaens - 858,059 (60,168) 797,891 739,031
PUDBLC SAFELY.....ovieiiirciii e e - 1,780,816 12,380 1,793,196 1,765,570
Education..... 6,540 3,199,079 50,185 3,255,804 3,250,068
Public works.... - 437,955 23,644 461,599 457,184
Trash disposal.............. - 351,473 - 351,473 350,468
Health and hUman SeIVICES. ......vvvereeeirereeeiiireianans - 32,595 5,688 38,283 36,284
Culture and recreation. ...........vvueieveeeererneneeerinnernenann. - 229,420 - 229,420 225,040
Pension benefits.........c..ooeiiiriiiiiiiiiiini e - 355,826 - 355,826 354,196
Employee benefits..........ccvevrriveeeeiiininnririnrincriianeens s 684,574 (18,644) 665,930 623,952
Property and liability insurance.. - 180,605 - 180,605 176,367
State and county charges................ - 97,491 - 97,491 92,055
Debt service:
Principal.........cuciiieiiiiiiiiiincisien e = 75,000 - 75,000 75,000
TNEET@SE. .. evviiieieiie s et ce e et e ee e e e vt e e s e e aaas 30,000 186,524 33,500 250,024 244,980
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........occoviiivinniniinininiiinen 36,540 8,469,417 46,585 8,552,542 8,390,195
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. ......cocciiviiininiiiiniinininienin (36,540) (267,816) (46,585) (350,941) 15,767
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
8 V] (S 3 | ST - 152,240 - 152,240 152,240
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes...................... - - - - 16,631
TranSErS OUL. .. ...iveiiiii ittt enaes - (247,925) (53,500) (301,425) (301,425)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES})...... - (95,685) (53,500) (149,185) (132,554)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE. .......coimiinimiiiiniimiine. (36,540) (363,501) (100,085) (500,126) (116,787)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..........ccoevvenie 1,023,763 1,023,763 1,023,763 1,023,763 1,023,763
FUND BALANCE ATEND OF YEAR........oocoviiviiiiinininen $ 987,223 $ 660,262 $ 923,678 $ 523,637 $ 906,976
See notes to required supplementary information.
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Current Year Actual and

Encumbrances Encumbrances Variance
and Continuing and Continuing Positive/
Appropriations Appropriations (Negative)
$ - 5 5896155 $ 18,914
- 480,918 (43,082)
- 19,085 19,085
- 4,175 (3,625)
345,406 (6,067)
- 923,320 7,233
- 23,441 1,841
- 481,742 184,242
. 48333 (5117)
- 68,611 6,161
- 114,776 24,776
- 8,405,962 204,361
29,001 768,032 29,859
500 1,766,070 27,126
= 3,250,068 5,736
= 457,184 4415
< 350,468 1,005
- 36,284 1,999
- 225,040 4,380
- 354,196 1,630
- 623,952 41,978
- 176,367 4,238
- 92,055 5436
- 75,000 =
- 244,980 5,044
29,501 8,419,696 132,846
(29,501) {13,734) 337,207
- 152,240 -
- 16,631 16,631
2 (301,425) -
: (132,554) 16,631
(29,501) (146,288) 353,838
1,023,763 1,023,763 3
$ 994,262 $ 877475 $ 353,838
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Reconciliation of Budgetary and GAAP Results

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Massachusetts Accounting System basis of accounting

(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A

reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2007, is presented below:

Budgetary basis as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund

balance - budget and actual.....................

Adjustments:

To record activity for MTRS on-behalf payments................
Net change in recording short-term interest accrual.............
To record encumbrances and continuing appropriations......
To record transfer from the water/sewer enterprise fund.....

GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures and changes in fund balances
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Other
Financing

Revenues Expenditures Sources (Uses)
8,405,962 $ 8,419,696 § (132,554)

473,796 473,796 -

- (5,214) -

- (29,501) -

- = 462,540
8,879,758 $ 8,858,777 % 329,986
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